A SPECIAL MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, June 07, 2016
At
5:15 p.m.
In The

COMMISSION CHAMBERS
(2" floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Jennifer J. St. Amour
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 922-4940 ext. 201

Traverse City Light and Power Posting Date: 06-03-16
1131 Hastings Street 2:00 p.m.
Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940



Light and Power Board 2 June 07, 2016
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial itens
together to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an ifem is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 24, 2016. (Approval
recommended) (p.4)

b. Consideration of BW-31 Project Authorization Request. (Approval recommended)
(Schimpke) (p.6)
c. Consideration of approving the Electric and Fiber Fund Budget and Capital Plan. (Myers-

Beman) (Approval recommended) (p.10)

d. Consideration of approval for the Garland Street Lighting agreement and purchase order.
(Approval recommended) (Myers-Beman) (p.11)

& Consideration of approving the 2016-2017 Insurance Renewal. (Approval recommended)
(Myers-Beman) (p.13)

Items Removed From Consent Calendar

a.

3. Unfinished Business

None.

4. New Business

a. Approval of wind purchase power commitment with Michigan Public Power Agency.
(Arends/MPPA) (p.32)

5. Appointments

None.



Light and Power Board 3 June 07, 2016
Regular Meeting

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.

b. From Staff.

1. High level discussion regarding large scale Solar generation as it pertains to
TCL&P (Arends/MPPA) (p.47)
2. Presentation of third quarter financial report. (Myers-Beman) (p.52)

C. From Board.

7. Public Comment

/is




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center

Tuesday, May 24, 2016

Board Members -

Present: Pat McGuire, Amy Shamroe, Bob Spence, John Taylor, Tim Werner, Jan

Geht, Jeff Palisin

Absent:
Ex Officio Member -

Present: Marty Colburn, City Managel
Others: Karla Myers-Beman, Kell' ; : 1ﬁoedel Jeni11fm St Amom

Item 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calendar

Moved by McGuue seconded by Shalmoe that the followmg actlons as recommended on the

Moved by Shamroe, secondéd by Palisin, that the Board authorizes the interfund transfer of
$175,000 from the Fiber Fund to the Electric Fund.

Item 3 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business

None.

Ttem 4 on the Agenda being New Business

None.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 May 24, 2016

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
None.
b. From Staff.
1. TCL&P Funding Survey results presentation.
The following individuals addressed the BoaId
Cathlyn Sommerfield, Ph.D., CS Research & Consultlng,.LLC
Kelli Schroeder, Manager of HR & Communications

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Marty Colburn, City Manager

c. From Board.

None.

Item 7 on the Agenda being P-u_blic Coﬁihent

Rick Buckhalter, 932:'Kélley St., '1'a'tepayer

There bemg no Ob_] ectlon Chauman Geht declaled}the meeting adjourned at 6:36 p.m.

g Tim Arends, Secretary

/is LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 07, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

zer (oial

To: Light & Power Board

From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering
Date: May 31, 2016

Subject: 2016 Distribution Circuit Rehabilitation Circuit BW-31

As reported to the Board on several occasions over the last few years, TCLP Staff has
been working on the design and cost estimate for the rehabilitation of circuit BW-31 out of
our Barlow Substation. Recently, we noticed that no Project Authorization Request (PAR)
was ever submitted to the Board.

The cost estimate is $862,600. In an effort to be consistent with other Capital
Improvement Projects and in accordance with proper established procedures we are now
submitting the PAR for Board approval. Gaining approval will allow Staff to proceed and
complete the project.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-
controversial item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with
staff's recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion
of the agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff's
recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY :

THAT THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD AUTHORIZES STAFF TO PROCEED WITH
THE 2016 DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT REHABILITATION PROJECT, CIRCUIT BW-31,
AT AN APPROXIMATE COST $862,600 AND DIRECTS STAFF TO SOLICIT
CONTRACT LABOR & MATERIAL QUOTES FOR THE BOARD’S CONSIDERATION
OF APPROVAL.



TRAVERSE CITY 1131 Hastings Street

LIGHT & POWER Traverse City, Ml 49686
Investing Our Energy In You 231.9224940

Date of Board Presentation/Consideration: June 7, 2016

Budgeted in Capital Plan:  Yes  CIP:  $675,000

Objective: Target Completion date of June 30, 2017

Project Description:

Rehabilitate distribution facilities on the Barlow Circuit BW-31 to improve reliability and
public safety. This project includes replacing approximately 192 deteriorated poles, about
17,900 feet of old copper primary and secondary conductor and 28 transformers. Existing
336 ACSR conductor will be reused on the new pole structures for the 3-phase part of the
circuit. This project affects almost 749 Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) customers.
The project location involves the areas starting at the Barlow Substation just south of Eighth
Street on Barlow Street, going north to Front Street, then going east of Front Street to
Peninsula Drive and Milliken Drive. The circuit then goes north on Peninsula Drive to Center
Road and north on Milliken Drive to Eastern Avenue.

Selection Method:

The Barlow Circuit BW-31 was chosen from 25 distribution circuits based on number of
customers as well as reliability history.

Project Purpose and Necessity

Many years of being exposed to ice, wind, rain, and snow have left the Barlow Circuit BW-
31 in need of repair. While poles, wires, and other pieces of equipment continue to
deteriorate, the risk of poles and wires falling on the ground continues to increase -- posing
a public safety concern. In addition, more interruptions of service to our customers will occur
with longer durations.



TRAVERSE CITY 1131 Hastings Street

LIGHT & POWER Traverse City, M| 49686
Investing Our Energy In You 231.922.4940
Project Benefits:
The 2016 Distribution Circuit Rehabilitation of Barlow Circuit BW-31 will:
o Improve public safety by reducing the chance of poles and wires falling down.
o Improve customer service by reducing outages as well as duration of outages.
o Reduce energy needs by reducing losses in older and smaller conductors.
° Reduce maintenance costs associated with emergency repairs.

Other Alternatives:

Do nothing. Public safety could be jeopardized by falling wires and poles. Customer satisfaction
will decline as the number of outages along with the duration of outages will climb.
Maintenance costs will increase as more money will be spent on emergency repairs. There will
be no conservation of energy since the smaller and older conductors will continue to cause
higher line losses as compared to installing new larger conductors.

Timing of Project
TCL&P currently has 25 distribution circuits. Most will require at least one-half to

one full year rehabilitation in the up-coming years. This yearly rehabilitation project
must begin now in order for us to perform timely repairs on the various circuits.

Cost Estimale:
Materials $ 169,000
Contract Labor $ 495,000
Contingency (15%) $ 99,600
Engr & Administration & Construction Inspections $ 99,000
Total $ 862,600
Financing Method:

Cash from TCL&P fund balance and as planned for in the six year Capital Plan.
Bonding will not be required.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

A reduction in annual maintenance costs associated with normal maintenance and
emergency repairs will occur.



TRAVERSE CITY 1131 Hastings Street

LIGHT & POWER Traverse City, M| 49686
231.922.4940

Investing Qur Energy In You

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends the TCL&P Board approval of the 2016 Distribution Circuit
Rehabilitation of Barlow Circuit BW-31 and all necessary expenditures in order to
maintain safe and reliable distribution service to its customers.



FOR LIGHT AND POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: May 25, 2016

Subject: 2016-17 Budget Adoption

It is expected at its June 6, 2016 meeting the City Commission will pass the annual budget Resolutions
(the resolution pertaining to TCL&P will be handed out at the Board mecting since it will not be
approved until the City Commission meeting, a day preceding the TCL&P board meeting) that
authorizes the Light & Power Board to adopt the budget and capital plan it submitted for their
consideration of approval, as required by City Charter. As a final step in the budget process, it is now
appropriate for the Board to formally adopt the budget documents for the 2016-17 fiscal year.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as staff deems it to be a non-controversial housekeeping
matter, and recommends the Board adopts the 2016-17 operating budgets for the Electric and Fiber Optic
Funds, and the Six Year Capital Improvements Plan. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar
means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full -
discussion. Ifafter Board discussion you agree with staff’s reccommendation the following motion would be

appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY .

THAT THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD FORMALLY ADOPTS THE 2016-17 OPERATING
BUDGETS FOR THE ELECTRIC UTILITY AND FIBER OPTIC FUNDS AND THE SIX
YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN.

10




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: June 2, 2016

Subject: Garland Street Agreement for Underground Costs and Decorative Poles, Arms and Fixtures

At the April 26, 2016 Regular Meeting the Board approved an amendment to the six year capital plan to
authorize the extension of the lighting system to include Garland Street Decorative Lighting in the amount of
$169,000, more or less, for the underground costs of the system.

Once the project is approved, the next step is for the Board to approve an agreement, similar to the one
approved for the West Front Strect Project, which will cover the services provided by the City on behalf of
TCL&P relating to the underground costs of the decorative lighting system.

Since Board approval of amending the capital plan to include the Garland Street Decorative Lighting
underground costs, staff solicited bids for the Garland Street decorative light poles, arms and fixtures and in
accordance with the current Decorative Lighting Policy. Four vendors submitted bids that were opened on
May 26, 2016. Three vendors provided street light poles that require foundations to be poured while one
vendor, The Stress Crete Group, provided the option of a direct bury pole. Staff has included the quoted cost
from Elmers for the foundation costs of $1,202.26 per street light for the non-direct bury poles. The results
of the bids are as follows:

Vendor Bid Amount Foundation Costs Total

Electra $34,930.00 $16,831.64 $£51,761.64
Top Line Electric (including labor) ~ $80,231.48 $16,831.64 $97,063.12
PowerLink Electrical $33,494.30 $16,831.64 $50,325.94
The Stress Crete Group $41,650.00 $ . $41,650.00

Top Line Electric was a lump sum bid that included labor, and after further discussion with this vendor the
price of the fixtures still exceeded the other bidders and an itemized bid was not provided.

Staff recommends moving forward with issuing a purchase order to The Stress Crete Group, the direct bury
pole vendor and overall low bidder taking into consideration foundation costs. It is planned that TCL&P
will order and pay for the decorative light poles, arms and fixtures with reimbursement to be made from the
City for the total costs. The bid amount may be amended in the future, because of minor change requests
made by the City/DDA that are currently being researched. The reimbursement will be incorporated into the
agreement between the City and TCL&P and subject to approval by General Counsel.

11




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

Staff recommends approval of the agreement and purchase order for the decorative light poles, arms and
fixtures. This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on
the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full
discussion. Ifafter Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be

appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY .

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO ENTERINTO AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR

THE UNDERGROUND COSTS OF THE GARLAND STREET DECORATIVE LIGHTING
SYSTEM IN THE AMOUNT OF $169,000, MORE OR LESS, SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO
SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND ASTO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.
IN ADDITION, THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A
PURCHASE ORDER TO THE STRESS CRETE GROUP IN THE NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT
OF $41,650, MORE OR LESS, FORDECORATIVE LIGHT POLES, ARMS AND FIXTURES TO

BE REIMBURSED BY THE CITY.

12



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

RAVERSE CITY

IGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: May 25, 2016

Subjeet: 2016-2017 Insurance Renewal

The Michigan Municipal League (MML) has submitted its proposal for liability and property
insurance for fiscal year 2016-2017 in the amount of $73,048.  Attached is an Executive Overview
from MML describing their company, the insurance process, and a list of benefits of pooling with
MML.

This year there is an increase of 8.16% or $5,512. The premium increase was caused from the City’s
experience loss modification factor increasing, addition of the final costs for South and East
Hammond Substations, and the addition of the newly constructed covered storage area building.

2009-10 - § 75,564
2010-11-$ 69,781
2011-12-% 61,214
2012-13 - $ 63,392
2013-14-§ 64,995
2014-15-% 65,715
2015-16 - $ 67,536
2016-17 - § 73,048

Similar to last year, the pool will be providing a dividend return in July/August period in the amount
of $51,032. Last year the dividend return was $56,608 and the TCL&P received $9,272.65.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Staff recommends that the
Board accept this proposal and authorize payment to MML for the 2016-2017 property & liability
insurance premium. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agrec with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOTION ON NEXT PAGE

13



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD APPROVES PAYMENT TO THE MICHIGAN
MUNICIPAL LEAGUE LIABILITY AND PROPERTY POOL IN THE AMOUNT OF
$73,048 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE.

14




michigan municipal league
workers' compensation fund

May 24, 2016

Karla Myers-Berman, Controller
Traverse City Light & Power

Re: Traverse City Light and Power Renewal Premium for 2016-2017.

TCLP’s renewal premium represents an increase of $5,512. The premium increase is
primarily due to the City’s experience loss modification factor increasing from .952 in
2015 to 1.048 in 2016 and MML property rates increasing four cents due to the Pool’s
property loss experience. Also, TCLP increased their substation property values $1.6

million dollars.

Line of Coverage 2015-2016 | 2016-2017 | 2015-2016 | 2016-2017
Premium Premium Deductible | Deductible

General Liability $13,683 $15,055 $0 $0

Errors & Omissions $15,531 $13,364 $0 $0

Property $24,023 $25,514 $5,000 $5,000

Excess Liability 5 million $7,149 $9,557 N/A N/A

Excess Liability 3mm x 2 mm | $7,150 $9,558 :

Total $67,536 $73,048,

The Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool appreciate your 31 years of
membership and we are committed to providing you with the best comprehensive

coverage and service.
Sincerely,
CM%@

Connie M. Monson
MML Account Executive

Service Provider: Meadowbrook Insurance Group, Inc.

Loss Control & Member Services: P.O. Box 2054, Southfield, Ml 48037-2054; (248) 358-1100; (800) 482-0626; Fax: (248) 358-0534

Grand Rapids Claims: 3501 Lake Eastbrook S.E., Suite 150, Grand Rapids, M| 49546-5939; (616) 942-0311; (800) 752-7477; Fax: (616) 942-0390

www.mml.org

15



@

michigan municipal league

Liability & Property Pool

Proposal

for the

City of Traverse City

Presented By:
Connie Monson

Meadowbrook Insurance Group
(877)370-8892

May 23, 2016

16



Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW 3
OUuR MISSION 3
INTRODUCTION 4
WHAT You CAN ExPECT OF Us 4
YOUR POOL INSURES MORE THAN . .. 4
COST AND COVERAGE SUMMARY 5
YOUR TEAM OF EXPERTS 7
BENEFITS OF POOLING WITH THE MNML

THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY HAS . ..

INCREASED LIABILITY LIMITS

HIGHLIGHTS OF COVERAGES PROVIDED 10
WHO IS INSURED? 10
GENERAL LIABILITY 10
GENERAL LIABILITY EXCLUSIONS . . . 10
PuUBLIC OFFICIALS LIABILITY COVERAGE 11
PuBLIC OFFICIALS LIABILITY EXCLUSIONS 11
PERSONAL INJURY & ADVERTISING / BROADCASTERS LIABILITY COVERAGE 11
POLICE PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 11
PROPERTY COVERAGE 12
PROPERTY EXCLUSIONS 12
COMPREHENSIVE CRIME COVERAGE 13
AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE HIGHLIGHTS 13
WHAT |s COVERED? 13
AUTO COVERAGES PROVIDED 13
POOL RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES 14
MEMBER EDUCATION 14
ONLINE SERVICES 14
MEMBERSHIP RESPONSIBILITIES 15

This proposal is intended to be only a summary of coverages and services.
For specific details on coverage terms and conditions, please refer to the
Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool coverage document.



Executive Overview

The Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool is administered by the Risk
Management staff of the Michigan Municipal League, and serviced by Meadowbrook
Insurance Group. Since 1982, the Pool has been a stable source of comprehensive
municipal insurance and risk management services. It is financially secure and positioned
for long-term stability.

The City of Traverse City has been a Pool member since 1985.

The League administrative staff and the dedicated Pool staff at Meadowbrook Insurance
Group are municipal insurance experts. Municipal risk management is our only business,
and we're proud of it!

The Pool provides insurance coverage designed specifically for Michigan municipal
exposures, combined with a package of loss control programs, claims administration, legal
defense and membership services that you won't find anywhere else in Michigan.

This quotation is based on the limits of coverage requested by the City of Traverse City.
Higher limits may be available, subject to underwriting review by Pool Management.
Please submit requests for higher limits in writing to your Account Executive. Your request
will be considered by Pool Management.

The insurance and related services described more fully in this proposal are being offered
to the City of Traverse City for an annual premium of $430,019.

City of Traverse City $356,971
Traverse City Light & Power $73,048

MML Dividend: The MML Liability & Property Pool Board of Trustees voted to return
another post-renewal dividend for Members renewing in 2016. The City of Traverse City’s
portion of the dividend return is $51,032. The City will receive this dividend in the month
following payment of your 2016 renewal premium.

Thank you for being a Pool member. We look forward to servicing your risk management
program for many years to come.

Our Mission

To be a long-term, stable, cost-effective risk management alternative for
members of the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool.

18



Introduction
What You Can Expect Of Us

v" A commitment to learn, understand and respond to your insurance needs;

v Continuous planning and innovation in product development and service delivery;

v" Products that meet your needs in terms of price, coverage and service;

v Prompt, accurate, and courteous response to your questions, problems and claims; and

v Knowledgeable and professional staff serving your needs consistently and with integrity.

Your Pool Insures More Than . . .

v 414 Public Entity Members v' 6,617 Vehicles

v 140 Fire Departments v 19 Electric Utilities

v 175 Law Enforcement Agencies v 27 Municipal Marinas

v’ 2,217 Police Officers v' $4.15 Billion of Property Values
v’ 5,742 Miles of Streets/Roads v" 195 Water Service Operations
v' 195 Water Utilities v' 215 Sewer Plant Operations

v $5 Billion of Property Value

These local communities are current Pool members:

City of East Jordan
City of Manistee
City of Harbor Springs

19




L. michigan municipal league
@ Llﬁﬂm(j R«”I’rnpnrty_lgcjdi‘
Coverage and Cost Summary
City Of Traverse City

Effective 07-01-2016 to 07-01-2017

Coverages Limit of Liability
Municipal General Liability (Coverage A) $5,000,000
Fireworks-7/4/2015 & 7/11/2015 $1,000,000
Grand Traverse County for Inspection Services $5,000,000
Grand Traverse Ski Club $5,000,000
Great Lakes Railroad Boardman lake Trail-Railroads MML235 $5,000,000
Great Lakes Railroad Mile Marker 25 Contractual Liability $5,000,000
-Railroad MML 235
Traverse City DDA A/l $5,000,000
Traverse City Light and Power $5,000,000
Light & Power Payroll $5,000,000
Sewer Back-Up Sublimit No Coverage
Personal Injury Liability (Coverage B) $5,000,000
Medical Payments (Coverage C) $10,000
Public Officials Liability (Coverage D) $5,000,000
Traverse City Light & Power $5,000,000
Traverse City DDA A/l $5,000,000
Law Enforcement Liability (Coverages A, B, and D) $5,000,000
Employee Benefit Liability $1,000,000
Fire Legal Liability $100,000
Cyber Liability (Coverages A, B, and D) $25,000

Dam Liability
Marina Operator Liability

No Coverage

No Coverage

Automobile Liability (Coverages A and B) $5,000,000
# Vehicles Comp Coll
119 $500 $1,000

Agreed Amount, if applicable 5 Vehicles for a total of $2,819,300

Aggregate Limit

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
$1,000,000
N/A
$50,000
NIA

NIA

N/A

Per Occurrence
Deductible

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
N/A
$0
N/A
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
N/A
N/A
N/A
NIA
$0

Coverages A, B, and D are provided with a combined single limit of liability. The most the Pool will pay for any

one occurrence is $5,000,000 regardless of the number of coverages involved in the occurrence.

Property
Property - Blanket Basis

Boiler and Machinery
Building(s)
Cemetery Property - up to $500 per headstone

$148,202,221

Included

Included

# Plots: 25,000

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000

Prepared by Meadowbrook Insurance Group - 5/20/2016 12:39:00

o)
Page 1 ofé-O



@

michigan municipal league
Liability & Property Pool

Coverage and Cost Summary
City Of Traverse City

Effective 07-01-2016 to 07-01-2017

Per Occurrence
Coverages Limit of Liability = Aggregate Limit Deductible
Contents Included N/A $5,000
Property in the Open Included N/A $5,000
Protection & Preservation Included N/A N/A
Property - Actual Cash Value See Schedule N/A $5,000
Property - Limited Replacement Cost N/A N/A N/A
Property - No Coverage See Schedule N/A N/A
Property - Replacement Cost See Schedule N/A 30
2007 German Shepherd, ZUK $10,000 N/A $1,000
2009 German Shepherd, LUK $10,000 N/A $1,000
Accounts Receivable $100,000 N/A $1,000
Consequential Damage $100,000 N/A N/A
Contractor's Equipment $3,262,000 N/A $1,000
Debris Removal - the lesser of 25% of physical damage loss or $5,000,000 $5,000,000 N/A
Demolition & Increased Costs of Construction Limit $100,000 N/A N/A
Earth Movement $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $5,000
Electronic Data Processing Equip $998,234 $998,234 $1,000
Expediting Expense $100,000 N/A N/A
Extra Expense $400,000 N/A N/A
Fine Arts $1,050,000 N/A $1,000
Fire Department Boats $89,000 N/A $1,000
Fire Equipment $1,685,876 N/A $1,000
Firearms Shooting Simulator $40,000 N/A $1,000
Flood (Except for Members located in Flood Zone A, AO, AH, A1-A999, AE, or AR) $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000
Fungal Pathogens $25,000 $25,000 $1,000
Loss of Income $250,000 N/A N/A
Loss of Rents $100,000 N/A N/A
Lumex Lite Mercury Vapor Analyzer $17,000 N/A $1,000
Ornamental Trees, Shrubs, Plants or Lawn $5,000 $10,000 $1,000
Personal Effects & Property of Others $500 $2,500 $1,000
Tools at Cemetery $41,715 N/A $1,000
Valuable Papers $125,000 N/A $1,000
Voting Equipment $119,885 N/A $1,000
Comprehensive Crime Coverage
Prepared by Meadowbrook Insurance Group - 5/20/2016 12:39:00 Page 2 0f21




= michigan municipal league
@ Liability & Property Pool
Coverage and Cost Summary
City Of Traverse City

Effective 07-01-2016 to 07-01-2017

Per Occurrence

Coverages Limit of Liability = Aggregate Limit Deductible
Employee Dishonesty Blanket/Faithful Performance $100,000 N/A N/A
Depositors Forgery $100,000 N/A N/A
Money and Securities Inside $100,000 N/A N/A
Money and Securities Outside $100,000 N/A N/A
Money Orders and Counterfeit Paper $100,000 N/A N/A

Bonds
Bond#: A Treasurer $250,000 N/A N/A
Bond#: B Deputy Treasurer $100,000 N/A N/A
Bond#: C Cashier Clerk #1 $100,000 N/A N/A
Bond#: D Cashier Clerk #2 $100,000 N/A N/A
Bond#: E Cashier Clerk #3 $100,000 N/A N/A

Only one deductible applies to claims involving two or more property coverages.

The Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool is pleased to offer all coverages
and services described in this proposal for an annual premium of $430,019.

N
Prepared by Meadowbrook Insurance Group - 5/20/2016 12:39:00 Page 3 of4~2




Your Team of Experts

Connie Monson
MML Account Executive
(231) 276-6499

Ellen Skender
248-204-8582

Customer Service Representatives

Tom Weed
Claims Supervisor
(616) 942-0311, ext. 4123

Michael J. Forster
Pool Administrator
(734) 669-6340

Joan Opett
248-204-8579

Rod Pearson

Loss Control Supervisor

(248) 204-8036

23



Benefits of Pooling with the MML

v Proven long-term availability and stability

v Broad coverage document written specifically for Michigan municipalities
v" Services tailored to unique needs of Michigan municipalities

v Member assets controlled by an elected Board of municipal officials

v Equitable rating based on Pool experience in Michigan

v Aggressive defense strategy — positive impact on case law

v" Professional, dedicated, and experienced local management, oversight and service
v" Decisions made and problems resolved by a group of your peers

v Investment income and underwriting surplus used to benefit members
v" Lower expenses through tax-exempt and non-profit status

v' Special loss avoidance training sessions including:

4 Safety aspects of emergency vehicle operations

v Accident investigation for supervisors

v" Confined spaces training

The advantages of pooling can be summarized by:

Service + Control + Value



The City of Traverse City Has . ..

v $10,229,182 Annual Payroll

v’ $148,202,221 of total values for real and personal property
v 29 Law enforcement officers

v 119 Vehicles

v 5 Fire/Rescue Vehicles with agreed values

Increased Liability Limits

We cannot guarantee the adequacy of any limit of liability. Due to the following factors, it may be
prudent to consider higher limits:

v Increased jury awards in your jurisdiction
v’ Increased litigation trends

v Protection of tax base against judgments in excess of your policy limits

If you are interested in increasing your liability limits, please contact your Account Executive.



Highlights of Coverages Provided

Who Is Insured?

The Pool member entity, elected and appointed officials, employees and authorized volunteers, and
any person officially appointed to a Board or Commission

General Liability

In addition to standard liability coverages (bodily injury, property damage, products and completed
operations) the Pool provides coverages that municipalities need on an occurrence basis with no
aqgregate liability limits:

v/ Liability resulting from mutual aid agreements

v" Premises medical payments v’ Fire legal liability for real property
v Host liquor liability v" Ambulance and EMT malpractice
v" Watercraft liability, owned less than 26’ and non-owned less than 50’

v Special events excluding -
*Fireworks (unless endorsed) sLiquor Liability * Mechanical Amusement Rides

Fireworks Coverage Options: (Fireworks application must be completed before coverage is endorsed
1. The MML Liability & Property Pool is primary (the Member is not added as an additional insured on a pyrotechnician’s

coverage):
Annual Aggregate Sublimit Additional Premium
$500,000 Yes
$1,000,000 Yes

2. The MML Liability & Property Pool is excess (the Member is added as an additional insured on a pyrotechnician’s coverage):

NO ADDITIONAL PREMIUM

V' Athletic participation liability v" Pollution coverage for Hazardous Response
v Employee benefit liability Teams
v Cemetery operations coverage v Cyber Liability Coverage Sublimit—MML233

_ ) (07/13)
v Marina Operators coverage available

v Up to $10 million in liability limits available

General Liability Exclusions . ..

The following is a partial list of general liability coverage exclusions. Consult the coverage document
for the complete listing:

v’ Pollution (except for Hazmat operations). v/ Contractual Liability

v Nuclear energy / nuclear material hazards v'Failure to supply utilities

v’ Aircraft Liability v Expected or intended injury

v Breach of contract v’ Electromagnetic radiation

v’ Failure of dams v'Medical malpractice for doctors and physicians

4 Backup of Sewers and Drains (exception -- $100,000 Annual Aggregate Sublimit for Sewer and Drain Liability)
v Criminal activity / Intentional acts with knowledge of wrongdoing

10 26



Public Officials Liability Coverage

“Wrongful Acts”, including intentional acts, defined as any actual or alleged error, misstatement, act of
omission, neglect or breach of duty including:

v Neglect of duty v" Discrimination

v’ Zoning defense and land use litigation v Employment practices
v Malfeasance v Misfeasance

v' Violation of civil rights v’ Cable TV broadcasting

Public Officials Liability Exclusions

The following is a partial list of public officials’ liability coverage exclusions. Consult the coverage
document for the complete listing:

v Pollution and Nuclear Energy v Eminent domain / takings

v’ Fraud, dishonesty, intentional and criminal acts v lllegal profit

v/ Failure to purchase coverage or adequate coverage v" Labor union actions

v" Return of governmental grants or subsidies v" ERISA violations

v Intentional acts with knowledge of wrongdoing v’ Backup of Sewers and Drains

Personal Injury & Advertising / Broadcasters Liability Coverage

v" Mental anguish and stress
v’ Libel, slander or defamation of character; violation of an individual’s right of privacy

v Proactive services for non-monetary damage claims

Police Professional Liability Coverage

Police Professional Liability coverage is contained within the General Liability and Public Official
Liability Coverage Parts

v’ Discrimination v’ Assault or battery
v’ Violation of civil rights v/ Improper service of suit
v/ Jail operations v’ Coverage assumes officers act with intent

v’ False arrest, detention or imprisonment, or malicious prosecution

v Wrongful entry or eviction or other invasion of the right of private occupancy

11 27




Property Coverage
In addition to covering buildings, contents and personal property, the Pool provides:

v" Blanket coverage -- All member-owned property insured (unless specifically excluded)

v" Coverage based on ownership rather than on a “schedule on file” avoids coverage gaps
due to errors or oversight

4 Property of others in custody of the Member for which the Member has an obligation to
provide coverage

v Boiler & Machinery coverage, including Boiler certification inspections
v Replacement Cost or Actual Cash Value available
v Fungal Pathogens (Mold) Limited Coverage

v’ Demolition/increased cost of construction

v" No coinsurance v Property in the open
v" Valuable papers v Extra expense
v Loss of Rents v Expediting expense

Property Exclusions

The following is a partial list of property coverage exclusions. Consult the coverage document for
the complete listing:

v" Nuclear reaction/ contamination v Dishonest acts
v War v" Acts of Terrorism excess of Pool's
o Cyber Risk /(Bé%?ﬁg)ate Sublimit -- MMLC TR
v Fungal Pathogens (Mold) excess of v’ Wear and tear

sub-limit

v" Computer failures/ viruses
v’ Failure to supply utilities P

v" Transmission Lines and Poles

Only one deductible applies to claims involving two or more property coverages.

12

28



Comprehensive Crime Coverage

v Employee Dishonesty/ Faithful Performance of Duty coverage provided on a blanket basis
v Loss Inside the Premises

v" Loss Outside the Premises

v Money Orders/ Counterfeit Currency

v Depositors Forgery

v" Position Fidelity Bonds

Automobile Coverage Highlights

What Is Covered?

Coverage is afforded while operating land motor vehicles, trailers or semi-trailers designed for
travel on public roads.

Auto Coverages Provided

v Michigan No-Fault Coverage, includes mini-tort coverage for no extra charge
v' Excess protection for use of personal automobile for municipal business

v Uninsured motorist for municipally owned vehicles

v Underinsured motorists

v" Non-owned and hired auto

v Comprehensive - actual cash value basis

v Collision - actual cash value basis

v Volunteer firefighter auto accident liability coverage

v Agreed value coverage for emergency vehicles is available

v Fire or Rescue Vehicle Rental Reimbursement Coverage

13

29




Pool Risk Management Services

v Physical inspection by municipal loss

v Review and service of all municipal :
control engineers

insurance matters

_— ; v L f t risk control
v aw enforcement risk contro
Public entity experts address various programs (LEAF and LERC)

liability issues
v Aggressive, member-oriented defense Property appraisal services available
strategy

v Former police officials address law
enforcement risks

Online Services

www.mml.org (click on the Insurance button) — offers Pool members an outstanding
resource for municipal risk management information and self-help tools in one attractive,
simple-to-navigate location. File a claim on line. Download your renewal application.
Request a loss control service visit. E-mail us a question. Other services available online:

v" Online Forms (including Sewer Backup Sample Documents)
v"  Risk Resources:

v Risk Control Solutions

v Safety & Health Manual

v Risk Management is Good Management Program

v

Law Enforcement Newsletters

v Access to Safetysurance website -- hitp://www.safetysurance.com/
v MML Pool Audited Financial Statements
v" Intergovernmental Contract

v" Board of Directors, Pool Administrator and Staff Profiles and Contact Information

14

30



Membership Responsibilities

Membership in the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool provides numerous
benefits. Likewise, individual members have certain responsibilities to the other members, which
are detailed in the Intergovernmental Contract. The following is a summary of the membership
responsibilities. Please refer to the Intergovernmental Contract, Articles 5 and 6, for more
information.

v

4

If a Member intends to leave the Pool, the Member must send a written notice to the Pool at
least 60 days prior to its next renewal date.

A Member must pay its premium when due. The Pool must give each member 20 days written
notice of intent to terminate membership for nonpayment of premium. Payment of premium
before the 20 days notice is effective will entitle the Member to reinstatement.

Members must maintain membership or associate membership status in the Michigan
Municipal League.

A Member will allow attorneys employed by the Pool to represent the Member in defense of
any claim made against the Member within the scope of coverage provided by the Pool. A

Member will cooperate with the assigned attorneys, claims adjusters, service company or other
agents of the Pool relating to the defense of claims for which the Pool is providing coverage.

A Member will follow loss reduction and prevention measures established by the Pool.

A Member will report to the Pool as promptly as possible all incidents that the Member
reasonably believes may result in a claim against the Member.

15

31



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 7, 2016
Subject: Wind Contract

Michigan Public Power Agency (“MPPA”) has negotiated a wind contract located in the thumb
area with a leading edge renewable developer with substantial experience in developing projects
throughout North America. The contract is for 61 MW aggregate capacity of output with a firm
price power purchase agreement and an overall leveled price below $50 per MWh over a twenty
year term, or a total maximum exposure of contract cost in the amount of $11,945,079.58, not
taking into consideration the time value of money. TCL&P’s proposed share of this agreement is
5.8% of all energy, capacity, and Environmental Attributes (MIRECS - requirements to meet the
State of Michigan renewable energy requirements) under the agreement that will provide an
expected generation output of 12,614 MWh’s. (Information on this wind contract was initially
presented at the November 24, 2015 board meeting with supplemental information provided in
the April 26, 2016 board packet.)

Staff retained RTD Consulting, LLC (“RTD”) to perform an independent analysis on this wind
contract. In summary, RTD’s recommendation was to pursue the project based on the fact that
the potential increase in REC’s is reasonable given the current level of discussion within the
State of Michigan. The cost of the project appears to be at a level that will not raise the average
cost of purchased power to TCL&P. The recommendation to proceed should be followed with
caution until MPPA has a final contract and all of the operating and financial parameters are
known.

Staff internally analyzed the impact of this contract on the wholesale costs of power in two
different scenarios: first, the impact of the wind contract if it was operational in the 2014 and
2015 calendar year and secondly, if it was operational based on the operation date disclosed
within the contract. This was completed to provide the Board a historical (actual costs) and
futuristic (estimated load/costs) perspective on the impact it will have on the wholesale power
cost and the power service cost recovery rate passed through to the utility’s customers.

In this analysis, Stoney Corner’s 2014 and 2015 generation data was used and adjusted
accordingly for the variation in generation output between the two wind projects. The results of
the analysis showed if this was contractually in operation in the calendar year 2014 the wholesale
power costs would have decreased ($73,861.62) or ($.2393) per MWh becausc the actual
purchase power price costs was below the average cost of the day ahead market at $47.59 per
MWh and the real time market at $59.77 per MWh. It is important to know in the 2014 calendar

32



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

year market prices were higher than normal because of the impact the Polar Vortex had on the
market the first few months of 2014.

In 2015 the wholesale power costs would have increased $165,514.30 or $.5027 per MW, this
change reflects the actual purchase power price costs was above the average day ahcad market at
$29.31 per MWh and the real time market at $48.89 per MWh. In this case the 2015 calendar
year was a relatively low year for market prices.

If this project were to become operational based on the scheduled contract date the estimated
increase in wholesale power costs for the first five years would range from $135,964.75 to
143,573.00 or $.3943 per MWh. MPPA ran an independent analysis using the generation from
the Beebe wind farm located in the thumb area and calculated an impact on our wholesale power
cost of $.33 per MWh, which appears reasonable when compared to staff’s analysis based on
literature that the thumb area is the prime location for wind energy and the amount of wind farms
constructed in the area.

Overall, staff conservatively used the low market price from 2015 and escalated it by 2% each
year for the analysis. If the market price were to raise it would only benefit the utility as it would
lower the premium and may even become a discount like the 2014 year between the wind
contract and the market. Staff feels the information provided is the maximum amount the
contract would impact the wholesale power of cost and costs passed through the power service
costs recovery rate onto the utility’s customers.

This analysis did not take into consideration the value of capacity costs since the capacity
recognized by MISO will be most likely be minimal, and the value of the RECS was not
included at this point because future legislation is only proposed regarding renewable
requirements.

Lastly, MPPA will be at the board meeting to present on the wind contract and their PowerPoint
presentation is included for review in the packet following RTD’s analysis.

Staff is requesting authority for the utility’s designated member representative of the MPPA &

TCL&P Energy Services Agreement, the Executive Director, to sign the letter of authorization
for the project purchase commitment.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE DESIGNATED MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE MPPA & TCL&P ENERGY SERVICES AGREEMENT, THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, TO SIGN MPPA’S LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION FOR THE WIND

ENERGY PURCHASE POWER COMMITMENT.

33




®
RTD CONSULTING, LLC

May 18, 2016
Mr. Timothy J. Arrends
Executive Director
1131 Hastings St.
Traverse City, MI 49686

Re: _ wind Farm Project
Dear Tim,
As you requested, I have reviewed the information you provided from MPPA wind

farm project. I have also updated the original spreadsheet I provided in my 11/11/2015
memo. With the new information, I relooked at the analysis provided and have the
following comments.

Discussion:

1. REC Requirements: The revised analysis provided by MPPA use 20% REC
requirement. There is no stated rationale for this increase. Without some
compelling reason to increase this target from 15% to 20% it becomes an
economic argument. However, if the average cost of the avoided energy is the
same or very close to the proposed project then the “green energy” is not a
premium cost and may be preferable from a policy perspective.

Another consideration is the prospect of the availability of solar energy. While it
will be more expensive than the . project, it will be energy that will be
available only during daylight hours and may be competitive with the average
MISO LMP's during daylight hours. It will likely have a higher capacity credit from
MISO. This is an emerging technology that may fit into the resource mix if TCL&P
still has a need for additional RECs.

2.  Reduction of NANR Additions: MPPA reduced the available energy from the
NANR as they do not think the additional 2.8 MW, which TCL&P will have an 8%
interest in will be built. This will increase the need for additional RECs from other
projects. This is reflected in Table 1 below.

2771 Monument Road, Jacksonville, FL 32225
(904) 607-1875
BobD@RTDConsultingllc.com | RTDConsultingLLC,.com

34




3.

4,

2016
2017
2018
ipi9
2020
2021
2022
023
2024
2025
2025
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036

Hotes:
1

Economic analysis: I have repeated the analysis provided in the 11/11/2015 memo as
it is unchanged.
The economic evaluation provided by MPPA shows the cost of the project over the 20
year life of the PPA. This projection is less than the expected cost of energy from MISO,
provided Renewable Energy Credits (REC) and Capacity Credits are as forecasted. While
the analysis Is reasonable it may be somewhat optimistic. In discussions with MPPA
staff, they acknowledge this issue but as there is not available data that can be used to
directly calculate the actual output from the proposed project, they used a proxy of the
Beebe project. Also used is a “multiplier” that allows for a comparison of MISO rates and
the cost of the project. This multiplier allows sensitivity analyses to gauge the financial
risk of the project.
In short, the cost of the project does not appear to increase the cost of wholesale
power.

Energy Forecast: Based on the forecast provided by MPPA Table 1 shows TCL&P will
imeetithe REC's target at 10%. The 15% target would require 4.5-5.0MW depending on
the capacity factor of the project. Should the 20% target be used, the additional
capacity would require 8,5-9.0 MW, again depending on the capacity fattor of the
project.

Table 1
Energy y Proposed  Total N i - % N )
Requ?rem'en:s P.!FF‘A} Herizage Renzwables e lar?:t Over/Under REE‘:C':%'Et CuwerfUndzr RS ’_ﬂrgeL OverfUnder
Renewablels o @ICss _ @153 _ @203 _
zzzratal Project Nhwh Target Target rarget
336,166 10331 26280 36611 33617 8,93 50,825 -27.4% 67,233.2 -45.5%2
336,908 10331 26380 17520 54131 33,691 60.73¢ 50,536 7.1% 67,58L5 +19.754
337,951 16331 8280 175%C 54131 33755 60.238 52,693 6.83: 57,5803 -19,9%:
339,218 10331 6180 17520 54131 33922 59.63t 50,883 6.4%% 67,843.7
340,645 10331 26280 17520 54131 34065 58.9%% 51,097 5.95% 68,128.3
342189 10331 26280 17520 54131 34,219 58 33 51,328 5.5% 63,537.9
343,822 10331 26280 17520 2131 34382 57,43t 51.573 5.C82 63,764.3
345,519 10331 26280 17520 54131 34,553 56,734 51,5829 4,438 69,105.8
347,305 10331 26285 17520 54131 34731 55.93¢ 52.096 3.932 63,4610
345,138 10331 256280 17520 54131 | 4012 55.C%5 52371 3.4%% 69,827.6
351,018 10331 26280 1752 54131 U . 35103 542% S2,654  2.8% 70,265.6 5
352964 10331 28280 17520 53131 35,296 53.4%: 52,945 2.2% 70,592.8 534
354,942 10331 6280 17510 54151 35484 52,53 53,241 17 70,9885 -23.7%
355964 10331 26180 17520 53131 35,695 516% 53,545 1,13 713828 ~248.238
358,014 0351 16280 17520 52131 35,901 53,852 C.53% 718028 =24.65%
359014 103351 1752 27851 35801 53,852 -48.33% 71,802.8 -61.23%
359,01 10331 17520 27851 35,901 53,852 -48.5% 718028 -61.23:
359014 10331 17520 27851 35,901 53,852  -48.33% 718028 -61.33%
359014 10331 17510 37851 35901 53,852 -48.35% 71,802.8 -61
359014 10331 17520 27851 35,901 53,332 -48.3 71802.8 -61
359,014 10338 1752C 27851 35901 53,852  -48.3% 7.,802.8 -61.23%

Energyforecast sthe MiSOenzrgy forecast prepared by MPPA in Oct 2015. The years 2031-2036 are extensdus'ng
average growth overthe 2015 2030 period.

2771 Monument Rd., Ste. 29 Box 337, Jacksonville, FL 32225
904-607-1875 |
BobD@RTDConsultinglic.com | RTDConsultingllc.com

35




Conclusions:

The conclusion remains essentially unchanged from the 11/11/2015 memo. These are restated

below for convenience.
This project should be pursued with MPPA at the level proposed by MPPA (3.32Mw).
This amount could be increase to 6Mw if needed if the economic parameters remain as
stated. The potential for an increase in REC’s is reasonable given the current level of
discussion within the State of Michigan. The cost of this project appears to be at a level
that will not raise the average cost of purchased power to TCL&P. It also adds another
tier of REC's with a different expiration date than existing REC's. However, this alone will
not be sufficient to meet a 15% REC's requirement. Therefore, additional REC's will
need to be pursued.

Given has increased the proposed project’s capacity factor to 40%, 5SMW will reach the

REC's target of 15%. The ultimate level of additional REC’s purchased will be a matter of the

Boards view of their desire to be “green” and the likelihood that the REC's requirements are

going to be increased above the current 10% requirement. Based on the data provided this is

an economic neutral decision.

Please let me know if you need any additional information.

Sincerely,
:R. ;: . Dyer 7&—"
President

2771 Monument Rd., Ste. 29 Box 337, Jacksonville, FL. 32225
904-607-1875 |
BobD@RTDConsultinglic.com | RTDConsultinglic.com

36




‘[ewiuIW aq 01 pa3oadxa s1 1edwi 3yl Ing ‘9oUaJaYIP  ASNED ABLL pue BaJE qUINY] SY1 Ul PIIED0| SPOU 3yl 1B P|OS 3q [|IM UoIIEIauas 2yl ‘JaAamoy ‘pPazi|iun asam saoud 3poN DL (9
“Jamod Jo 1502 9|eSajOYM 343 U0 JoedWI [BLISIEW € BABY PINOM 31 |93) 30U Op aM 9SNEIG ‘PAPN|IUI JoU B.E $33) UoNSSFUO) (§
‘PRUMO SIYS1J UOISSILUSURLY |BIDUBUY 3] 4O 3SNEISG JUNOWE JUeduSiS B 0} pasodxa JOU SI 4’771 Se PIpPN|oUl J0U 243M S3SOI UOISSIWISURL] (¢
"XaoA Jejod 2y} 03 anp |ewssouqge sem Jeah $TOZ U3 95Ne29q 1e9A GTOZ 9YI WOy 8TOZ/LTOT Ul J0IB|BISD %7 € Yum
13l04d puipm uodny ay3 jo Indino pajewiss ayl Aq Indino ayl Suisnipe pue wiiej puim s,Jauio) ASUOIS WO BIRp [BN3JR SIedA Jsed Uo paseq pale|ind|ed Sem SINUIARY palewinss (g

'51502 Jamod 9|eSa|oYM BJNINY PUE JUBLIND Y3 UO 3ABY P[NOMm 3 1oedw] 3yl pue Tz Ul |eucileiado Sem JOBJIIUOD U3 I U paseq 12e3ucd puim pasodoud Jo uonippy (Z
S,4yM 4234 Jepus|ed pue Jamod Jo 1500 3|esajoym Joj uejd Jeah aAl S VddIA UO paseq siead Sululewal ‘siaquinu Jeah Jepualed [enide uo paseq STOZ/YTOZ (T

suoidwnssy /s310N

{91/s) @3ep o)
umowyun LSET 68°8P $ 1165 $ UMIA 12d 2011d 13BN S [BaY d5euany
umoujun 88'€z TE'6E S 6SLY S UM Jad 23114 1IN peayy Aeq aSesany
65°6ES 29T $ 0£'ST699T $ S§S'S9T99T 0E'YIS'SOT $ (29'198'¢L) $ A313u3 3|gEMauURY JO 150D WNIWaLd/(Wnodsiq)
8S61°0 $ SS6v0 $ Ev6T0 £205°0 $ (g6€2°0) $ UM 13d duatagia
Z116'S9 $ Y6v0°'L9 $ 9168°L9 19089 $ 99/5'EL $ UMIA 13d Jamod 2]eS3|0Y/W 40 350 D8RI9y pajewils3
£95'TS6LEE 879°906'95€ ¥10°S91'9gE 866'SET6TE 6.L'S69°80E S.YMd| 134 Jepua|e)

SE'SLYLTTT

S IWTI6E68S'TL

S 9O¥/6L'TZ8TT S LL60TWTETT

S SE008TILTT S

(15 21¥'08¢E) (0s'€56'2£€) (69'09'59¢€) (9z'T2¥'8SE) (8T /¥8£6S)

9T'TS86LYS 0C'6/8'6€S ¥2'908'TES 95°S86'€TS 95°S86'ECS

9L'SPT'LOT'TT S TLSOV'ZTTYTT S T6'TE9'9S9°TT  § [P'SE98ST'ZT $ £6°199°98L°TT §
810T £102 9T0Z ST0Z v10Z

| YIMOdJ 40 150D FIVSITOHM NO 123r0dd ANIM 0 LIVNI

ST S9 $ 6£S5599 $ vI6EL9 $ bEos L9 $ 6SISEL $

€95 TS6'LEE 879'906'9€€ $T0'S9T'9EE 866'SET'6TE 6£4'569'80€

SLSYTLOT'TC  § TLSOP'TTrTT S T6'TE99S9°TZ S LV'S69'8STTT S L6'T99°98L°TT S
8102 L10Z 910z ST0T ¥Toz

1SYO3¥0d NV1d ¥v3A JAI S,VddIN NO 4d3sva

NV

13MOd JO 3500 3|BSS|OYM [BI0L MBN

19BJIUOD PUIA Pasodold JO saNUaAdY palewisy
10BIIUOD PUIM PasOdold JO UOIPPY

13MOd JO 1500 9[eS3|OYM

YMIA 13d Jamod 3|BSa|oY 10 150D 98eIany

S,UMD| Jeaj Jepuaje)
13MOd O 150D 9|BSI|OYM

9TOT 2unr

uoljeWIOLU| JUSLIND Buz)|ilN - 19BJIUO0D PUIp pasodoud Jo Alewwng

J1amod pue ys AuD ssianed ]

37



1UBWIRaJS8Y A|[ddng ASiau3 puippn
Adualdy Jamod d1jgqnd uesiydijnl

38



(puim Joj apedap 1se| Ul Suldld Ul |uUlIBpP + %09) SAIHISdWOD S| uldlid

(Jeos8 AS1aua ajgemaual %400T 2Aey suonesodio) Qs 2uniio4 jo uoipiod
Suimoud pue a34e|) 3|gemaual 0w JueM SWISAS JaquIBW JNOo JO SI2WO03ISND 1813y

pP3aliwi| a4e uesiydiAl JO 33e1S Syl Ul puim JoJ suoiled0| a1ydes3038 Jatwald

24n1nJ ay1 Ul 3|gen|eA aiow ASIaua puim ayew ssauisng Jamod ay3
SuiziuoqgJedsp uolle|si8a) [eJapad 13 ueSIYdIA J1SY10 pue uejd Jamod ues|) |elapa4

(s12Anq Joj Suiolad Jomo| 0ju| 1e|SUBI] SDAIJUSIUL) SIESA G IXBU JOAO SSAIIUIDUI Xe]
uoizonpoid A3i1au3 ajgemausy 1no saseyd gTOZ 31e| ul passed uolye|si3a |eiapa

(1no paseyd sesponu g |e02) s9o14d sed [eanjeu Suist 1sujede oljojiod Jamod ino
s109104d 1eY] Sululewal 224nosaJ Ajlddns Jamod 3|eas a31e| Ajuo ay3 si ASisug puipp

. Ailddng ABiau3 puipp AUAA

39



\

9107 Adenuer
dulpua syluow T 3Y3 JaA0

J9AS BWI] T J0J Si01elauasd

lamod 'S’ 1oy |any

dol aya se |eod 4001490 Sed
|lednieu eyl saysijgnd y|3

|e0) SI)ElioA0 Ser) |einleN

syuow {7 1se| ay1 ui uoiyolo4d
Adidnujueg Jo) paji} ||e 932 219 ‘ASiauiy
‘[e0D 10111ed ‘Adisu3 J91/BM — STOT
u0I103304d Adidnanjueg

'S'N 104 pa|iy J31|ddns 1sadie| € “oUu|
$92Jn0saY |eanieN eyd|y — STOC ‘€ Sny
uo1199104d Adidnayueg

'S"N 404 pajiy J93npoud [e0) 'S’

1593.€| pug U] [B0D Y2JVY — 9TOT ‘TT uer
uoI19910.4d

Aaxdnujueg “s'n Joj pa)ly - 492npoud

|02 10123s 91eAldd 1598.1e| S,plioMm

— diop A8usu3 Apogead - 9TOT ‘€T |udY

|e0D Ul SISl jeldueul

uoljewJojsuel) uononpold AloLio9e|3

Aouobyy samod dIamd uebaoun




%6€ - (80D

S,

¥86T - oAy 3|2 @
0861- €# [Ioqdwed

3jyo4d AS1au3g s, A1) asianes)

sed 1eu yum

pade|das AjgBie| aq [m
31 SWI3 JOAO JUIISP |20
13 3|gemauad Bunsixa sy

V.ll

%6t -Aiddng

paje|a4lod
94 + 06 Ses |eanieu
- S3seYINd 13BN

1 4

S9seaJoul 34nsodxa sed [eanieu se ysid 921ud ainin) Sulusadwep ul 3|04 3|gen|eA sAe|d puip

uonisodwon oljojliod Alddng Jamod

Aoudby somod and UeBron
s v

41



SUoIsI23qg wiiaj-bBuoq anlqg saiuouod3

93paH [9N4 W3] -3U0T
JuUsWageue|A SIY seo asnoyuaalio
S|eoD Alljiqeulelsns

214d paxi} umouy — Alljigels 914d

:9|euoljey Auewlid

€T0T Ul %S puUe 107 Ul %Eg wouydn

MIA 00S‘E —Sa1e1S pPalun
93 Ul 12XJBIA Vdd ||BI9A0 JO %0S
PIPI3IXS S,dd 91e10du02 ‘STOZ U]

J9Ang s1e40du0) — S,dd 12941Q

H3LIN3D SINEVMINIH SSINISNG FLNLLSNI NIVINAOQW MO0 :30HN0S

44¥1S ON
S9lL eSL
2QWED SjuBUBULRY
— .  dH
oUMS T, |
UG "\ W a 20
002 . Y poomie)g
sew (B0 ly
N oz = g9
: oos1n @ Bioqwoolg L 4
mog g
e = 9
ozz 4 oo oA L 20I0j59[eS
iO0UEA =
a|ddy ey @ vo
— - = sioon
sz s
0s2Z ~ osEo0aIS {5 [essua9 P .
Buiuio) . y
suamo oe® i Mwm G 2
P as om(. 0S ong MNw-—. i
{ uneyy  BUIUI0O Elelelel5) y
S0z f\\ p— paaLoo] \
zox] , AR, g
@F T Py
(=74 602 PN 4 ) ..C§< g
YOS0IOIN HeWEM - 0gE B

-
ST hauinby g

"~

‘spemebaw ur eleq

L1oeded Jejos pue pu [g30] ul soruedwos dog,

2oed s|qipaJoul ue 1e Ajddng puipp W] -3uoT SuiINJaXe Ay

suoljelodio) [egol|S) a|qen|eA 1SON




(a]gemaual Jo % 98ie| %40T Sulutewsad) Suineddiped diysiaquiaw Aduasy JO %06 J9A0

(me] 21815 ul) ysu e ig 0ol uawuijesiw aoueldwod aAile|si3a| g Aloiengal pue
$1502 AJDAI[9pP ‘S20USJIBLIP 1USWI|1IDS |eldUBUL) ING S2N0S3Y 31.1S JO 1IN0 P3JapISuo)

Jadojanaq Jo aauanadx] ('3) pue Sudid ('p) ‘siuswalinbay [edueuld (*3) ‘SUOIIIPUOD
SWwI31 30eJ1u0) ('q) ‘sanisaldeteyd Aljenp 193foid ("8) Uo $32IN0sad payuel 3 pajen|en

ST0Z Aldes ul saiyunjioddo
109fo4d Suienjeas ueSaq pue s}agiel Jaquaw 21e8a133e pue |enplAlpul pPaziuesiQ

(S211IAILISUSS YSI 9014d [Ny pJemUO) 3 SdY d1epueln a1e1s Sullsawl)
#TOZ Ul JusWissasse ysii oljoyriod Ajddns AS1aua Jaquiaw AQ Jaquiawl pawliojad

£T0Z Ul AJuno) 1011845 Ul JUSWRJ8e Aj[ddng ASisu3g pUIpA B JO UOIINJ3X3
YSnoJy1 9|e3s JO SIIWOUOID pue uoilde Julol Jo s1fauaq 3yl psousliadxe VddIN

SS900.d Juswssassy Alddng puipp

43



BI1J3WY YLION Ul siolesauasd samod 1sadie| 3yl 4o auo - Jojelado jo Aljiqipal)
24n1on.1s AJaaljap 1onpoad pue Suidiud — agejueApe aA1112dW0I JJWOU0d]

SUOIIPUOD PUB SWJI] SNo3FeIUBAPE YIIM 1USWI3J8Y Paziwoisn)

sJaumo pue| aaioddns yum juswdolanap 193(oid Alljenb paosueapy

(3D) saulgdn] - ASojouysai 1sa1e7

(Aouamiya jenuue ysiy) uesSiydi|Al JO |[e Ul SUOIIBIO0| 334N0SaJ PUIM 1539 3Y1 JO 3UQ
doo7 quinyl AY Si7E — Ue3IyaiA Ul waisAs AIaAI|3p 1SNCOJ 1SOW 3Y] 01 Pa1daUU0JI31U]

$91e1S pPalun 3yl ul Jadojanap Jamod puim 1sadie| ayl Agq padojanap 103foid

;108loid puipp uoinH AUpA

44



ieaj Jepuaje)
9¢0T ST0T ¥T0T €T0T TTOT TT0oT 070T

L L

0207 670T 8T0T £T0T

6T0T 8TOT LTOT 9T0T

slpuo) A3u0lg

pupy uony

SUCNIRSURL | 13HIR |A] mee

lypue] ——
[Pqdwe)

— j

EERINETIEY:

——

——

——

papnjaul ale suonoesues yead swos -

Aapoeded eg07-GT SIPNPUI puIp -

Ayzeded ou apn[aul suonJesuel] 1aely -

35S0 po1sed=l04
sa24nos Ajddns Jamod Al) ssianel]

IsuonesIpIsuon ———

0c

ot

09

0s

o
o
-

YMIN/S 4500 31un dad

=
o~
i

o+t

09T

03T

s, 2ledwo) Ydd PUIAA UoINH S0P MOH




spaau oljoj1iod Ajddns Jamod siaquiaw yoes 01 paJojiel Ajipuenb uoioesuel] .
(401e43d0 Yyum sulewsl ysiy [euoiesado) paJsanlap g paonpoud st leym Joy Ajuo Aed
ST0OZ pPlW p3ajdadxs uoljesadQ |eloJaWwWo)

HPM o tn u.., . Ajddns Jamod |euOIIUSAUOD /M 3AIJIIRdWO0D —SUDld
ol = = S91NQ1J1Y [BIUWUOIIAUT pue Aldede) ‘ASisug anisday .

P 1. 1JUSWa218Yy aseyoind JOmMod JesA 07 e

Fo S

199[04d PUIM UOINH Ao - .,H}
i, (uoias quinyl) |IN ‘Aluno) uoiny .

Iy

suoneoloadg Aay - AjJddng puIpp




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

EST. 1912

To: TCL&P Board

From: Tim Werner, Board Member
Date: April 20,2016

Subject: Large Scale Solar

I am writing to request that the TCL&P Board direct Executive Director Arends to study the
economics of a TCL&P owned | megawatt PV solar peaker plant. This effort will require
TCL&P staff time, as well as outside expertise, in order to provide the board with accurate costs
rather than rough estimates. As costs to produce electricity from solar have continued to decline,
I believe it is a responsible course of action for TCL&P to determine if solar is a viable local
peaker plant option.

It is likely that there will be a gap between the cost of the peaker plant and what the TCL&P
Board is willing to spend. This gap should be described both in terms of total peaker plant cost,
and in terms of cost per kilowatt-hour. Understanding this gap, and how it might shrink over
time, will provide an opportunity for discussion of various means of closing and/or filling the

gap.

One tool that can play a significant role in closing the gap is the 30% federal investment tax
credit, ITC. Realizing the ITC will not be a simple endeavor for TCL&P, but the potential value
of the ITC merits the effort. TCL&P might be able to work with a company in the business of
matching non-profit entities with companies having the appropriate tax appetite. Another
approach might be to work directly with local companies having the appropriate tax appetite.

Many Traverse City citizens, businesses, and local organizations have expressed interest and
support for renewable energy and solar energy specifically. Creative minds can probably come
up with various ways that this interest and support can be leveraged to fill the gap between the
cost of solar and what TCL&P will pay for solar. The City Commission has also expressed
interest and support for renewable energy, so there might be opportunities to engage the City in
the project.

Total TCL&P Demand: A TCL&P 1 megawatt PV solar generation plant could operate as a
peaking plant, as daily peak electricity demand occurs close to solar noon. In the two figures
shown, hourly total TCL&P demand is graphed for two different three week periods in 2007.
The data shown is representative of non-summer demand (top) and summer demand (bottom).
The amplitude of the daily peak demand is consistent for both non-summer weekdays, and
summer weekdays.




60
. 50 4 A1
N ANATAE T AVAV LY N ATATATAY
VM UV Y M) VY Y g
3 I v ¢ LY
E‘ 20
10
0 T T 1
19-Feb 26-Feb 5-Mar 12-Mar
70
60
g 501 A
% 40 —
9
g 30
;_g 20
10
0 T !
18-Jun 25-Jun 2-Jul 9-Jul

The non-summer demand is very regular with an almost fixed nightly minimum, and it is easy to
pick out the days of the week; five weekdays with higher peak demand, and two weekend days
with lower peak demand. The weekday peaks are between 45 and 50 MW, while the troughs are
near 30 MW, The difference in daily peaks from weekdays to weekends is consistently in the 10
to 15 MW range, and is the result of increased weekday demand by commercial and industrial
rate payers during standard business hours,

The summer demand is not as regular as the non-summer demand, but the days of the week are
still apparent. The Independence Day holiday stands out for its peak demand being similar to a
weekend day. The daily peak demand passes 65 MW on some weekdays, while the troughs
range from approximately 30 MW to near 40 MW. As with the non-summer demand, the daily
variation in demand approaches 20 MW. Air conditioning in the summer is the primary driver
for the increased electricity demand, and the increased variability in peak electricity demand.

Peak Demand Variability: The figure below shows the peak daily demand as a function of
peak daytime temperature with weekdays as one subset, and weekends and holidays as a second
subset. The data are from June 14 through August 5 of 2007. Linear regression (equation shown
on the figure) shows that peak weekday demand is a strong function of peak daytime
temperature. The hottest weekdays of the year in 2007 had peak demands near 70 MW, while
the hottest weekend days of the year in 2007 had peak demands near 50 MW.




80
70 -
° y=0.7274x+0.0274
‘/ R?=0.8107
2 5 * e g e
s P s ¢ 3
a o o
& s S
3 ® (3
2 50 L ) @
%- g ) » + Weekdays
a ® =
* e © 00 © Weekends
- = *g &
o °
30
20 : : ; . . . ; )
60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 100
Peak Daytime Temperature, F

Notice that when the weekday peak temperatures are at 68 F, the peak daily demand is
approximately 50 MW, which coincides with peak winter demand illustrated in the first figure.
Commercial and industrial rate payers that primarily operate during standard business hours
account for approximately 20 MW of air conditioning load as the temperature peak moves from
68 F up toward 95 F.

This is only a cursory look at data from one year, but the nature of the daily and seasonal
variation in total TCL&P demand could allow for up to 5 MW of peak shaving from PV solar. A
peaking plant producing electricity from PV solar will make economic sense for Traverse City. T
believe that it is a responsible course of action to understand when and how it will make
economic sense.




weJtsold Je|os

Adua3dy Jamod 21jgng uesiyai




PUBWISP 15938348 JO Sunoy
sulInp uoneJsusa3d — spaau Jojesado plig ay3 3eym sy jyoad uoneasuss JejoS .

s3o9(oud
PUIM UBY3 SIUSWSJDUL JO[[BWS YdNW Ul p3||eIsul Sq UBD JB|OS J[edS-AU|II]
WEJS04d JOMOJ UBS|D) [BJSP3) 3Y3 UO AJLIE[D SJ0W 188 UBD SAA —
s|eog;syuswauinbau 21815 UO AJLIE|D SuoW 193 UBD AN  —
SuI|29p 031 9NuIUOD 03 pa1dadxa si pue A|pideJ pauldap sey Je|os JO IS0  —
‘saeak
OM3] SUIMO||0} 33 JSAC 3n0 saseyd pue gZpZ YSNoJyl papusIxa uaaq Sey 3PadD) Xe| JUSWISIAU|  —
SPIS JNO UO SIAWI|

SUONEBDO| JB1] p.f
pue 7 03 s309load puim ysnd A=yl |j1m quswaainbau 90| aya Suiseaudul uone|siSe| 933§ MON —

pa3o|dop SJe SUOIEDO| PUIM IS9g  —
SI9qQWIB| WddIA 404 uondo  pooS B 3q J93UO| OU |[IM PUIAA o

18|05 AYAA




Juswalinbal
Adenbape adinosau paiemol 1paJd Alpeded %469, .

oueldwod
91e1S pJemoy siipadd ASiaua s|gemausy .

‘S11Jouaq 4910 SAI923d OS|Y

UMIN 12d GBS JBAO — MAIN T > o
UMIN J2d G885 01 0/S - MIA OT >PUB MIN T <
UMIA 49d 09$ ueyl sss| — MIN OT <

s309loud Jejog Jo Suidlid Wdd

- e . v




S200 Q0L A OOL
i

SUO[}eI9PISUOD
uonnqgrisiq

puej 1ej4 AjleAie|a.

JO 10| e salinbay
pa123uuod

-plIS ueys Jayae.
D31I3UUO0I-I2qUIIIA




Xiw Ajddns Jamod 01 UoI1edI}ISIDAIP PIPPV

oljojaiod 3yl ul sa24nos Ajddns Jayio
JO 1502 9Y3 01 paJjedw 0l 150D 3|geuoseay

SoA|9sWay3 103loud e op
Ajgeuoseal ued Jaqwaw Aue ueyl 302 JoMOT]

Ajddns ajgemaual palisap
194} ,suni-aul}, 01 SIsqUIN VddIN MOJIV

SI9qWIS|N VddIW ©3 3ausg




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 7, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board .

From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller KIJL@/
Date: May 25, 2016

Subject: Quarterly Financial Report

Enclosed in your packet are the third quarter financial statements for the Electric and Fiber Funds.

Electric Utility Fund

As of March 31, 2016 (75% through the fiscal year) operating revenues are 72.39% of budgeted operating
revenues. Overall revenues have decreased compared to prior year because of the modifications made to the
PCR formula and decrease in the wholesale cost of power.

Total operating expenses are at 71.49% of budget year-to-date, or very nearly on-budget, with purchase power
costs at 71,27% , Transmission is at 84.42% higher than expected due to Attachment O salary/wage allocations,
which is based on the value of transmission assets compared to the utility’s total assets (used for MISO
reimbursement calculations) are higher than what used in the budget, Customer Accounting is at 69.30% lower
than expected due to positions being filled with new personnel starting at the beginning of the salaries/wages
scale, General administration expenses at 67.85% lower than expected because of expenses expected to be
incurred later in the fiscal year.

Net income through the first quarter is $2,007,934, which is approximately a $2,268,000 decrease over the prior
year.

Cash flows shows approximately $6.6 million expended in capital assets, primarily for West Side Transmission
Line project, Pine and State Street Underground project, South Substation replacement transformers, and the
Covered Storage Building project.

Fiber FFund

Revenues in the Fiber Fund are 62.18% of budgeted operating revenues while expenses are 79.03% of budget
year-to-date. Salaries and related fringe benefits are at 118.31% and 129.87% of budget, because more time is
being allocated to fiber maintenance during the fiscal year than expected. The Fund has a net loss or change in
net position of $(17,295).



0IEH8E0L

LLf e

9LFFBS 0T

96T°LEL'T

€L 661
0SI°¢
TSLOLL
T00°8LT
6¥9°SYI°l

uonisod jau [Bl0],

psjoLnsaIun
s19s8® [e11deo Ul pa1saAU]
uonisod JoN

sonIqel] [e1o L
S9NII[IQEI] WA} SUo| [BI0 ]

Anqer] uoisuad 10N
saouesqe pajesuadwio)
SANIIq eI WI}-3U0T]

SI1[1qEI| JUDLIND [EJO L

juswIeA0s Areurnd o} ang
soouesqe pajesuadwo))
SMNUIAII PAUIRIUN
siisodap towosnyy
sanI[Iqel] 19130 pue sasuadxs peniody
o[qeAed s;UNO2Y
SInIIqel] Jua.LIn’y

NOILISOd LIN ANV SHILITIIVIT

£98°6£€°61

89.°990°C8

£SE°089°9¢

SHE66STY
16°TES' 1
169°G6€°1
998°C
6ES6Y11

CI+°98€°ST

985°6¢
66T°SE9°1
801°6LS"1
99T°¢
189°0S
019°TYLT

98L°986°C1
LLO'ESE’E

o
SJURISIAUL puE ysed |2k}

MO[JINO PalIdJag
S]9SSE B0 ],
§]9SSE JUALIND-UOU [B10]

19U ‘pojeinaadep Sureq siosse [eude)
ssa1504d Ul UOTIONIISUOD)
sjuawaAoxdul pue| pue pue]
o[es 10] p[aYy 19SSy
JUAWUIRA0S Argwiid WOl anp - SSOUBAPE ULI2)-5U07]
19858 11Joueq Juswkojdwalsod Jay1Q
$]9SSE JUALIND-UON

§]9SS¥ JUALIND [¥I0 L

sasuadxe predaid
SOLIOIUDAU]
PYO
saxe],
1S2I91UL PANIIDY
(puny Jomod pue YSIT) SIUNODOE 9]q1129]0oUN IO
€01°6.LZS JO SOOUBMO[[B SSI[ “IouI0Isny)
SO[qRAI09Y
SIUDWISIAU]
SJua[eAIND2 YseD pue yse)
§J95SE JUd1In))

S13SSV

910T ‘1€ HOUVIA

NOILISOd L3N 40 INJIINHLV.LS

aNN4 2134103714

(ueSi1yd1A ‘A3 9saaAea ], Jo A310) 93 Jo Jiup) Jusuodwo)) v)

dIMO0d ANV LHOIT ALID ASYHAVHL



%86'0L £+9°061°L LST'SSS'LI 006'8LL'FT 100°CF1 95T9tT L1 LST'S8S'LI (z99'0r) 090'196'1 G6E'F16']
%LT 1L S66'LTOL SOSECH L1 008° L9+ +T LES0ST $96°C81 LI SOS'CERLI (Ts1°68) 61 Pre’l 0r0°606'|
%£9'ST 9r1°T89'L Pe8'rLY 000°LSE°T LPSG0r LOE'S9T PS8PLY 68'80C 916'6T P9L'SET
%LELE 128°50L (TN 000°LTI'1 SEF19 LPL°65€ LITLTY $TTT! FLE'LE 09°6%
%108 STr998 SLE'LEY'S 000'+9C" (0£9'959) 0T ST SLE Lo (cT1'sT) LLrels #S0'SSE
%10°6L S11'196 £88'819°¢ 000'08S" ¥ {gor'sct) LEEFEL'E §88'819°¢ (896°L11) o e SYTLIE
%Z0'Fs SHELO1T LESTOPST 000"t 1LY POT'SS £5E°88Y'C LSSTOPE'T 0TL'TL 00°€1T TTL'S8T
%1€'89 BlE €] $89'8¢ 000°Ck 0T0°ST $99°¢ 889°8T 1LFT 844 zl6'C
%b6 1L SL8Cl6 sclieve'e 000°LET'E £9¢°11T coLiel'e STI'epeET (£01°59) 0€8°L6T LTL'TET
%9LCH S16°c6l $80°868'C 000'160°€ (Legteet’l) 198°061"F $80'868°C ($9L'98t) 9L 98y =
%9191y (8£0°¢18) $68'TLO'L 008°LST ceLorTl (oLs'tol) 8€8'TLO'L 8ES°L0S (s2T1°69) rLE'SEY
%0Y'6r 000°0r¢ 000°T€E 000°TLY 000'zEE = 000°TEE 000°CE - 000°2S
%IL'St SPYTol TSYPSL 001°L1€ (9c8'801) 88T°€9C et psl (60s°L) $98°91 65€°6
YL FL (L+rT'161%) 0TH61'LT 05+'$8€'9¢ (9L1't9s'1) GLE'SSL'ST COTHGI'LT ILTET 9SH'165'T 1L1'928'T
%ST 6T 86S'EE1 SFE065 0SL'9SH SOt'H8s £88°S S$TE'06S (£+0'sT) rrE'St 10L°22
%Z9¢ (£60°+T) 906 000°ST 0TL8¥E (F18°LS) 906 e - Tre
%IT'EL (LL6'99) €TO'ES1 000°0sT (rze'or) LF6'ETT cTo'esl (s09°11) F16'CE 90€'1T
%19°rTE ¥06'0€T POL'EEE 008°z01 £80'06T 619°¢Y FOL'EEE (LLevl) [SY (zey)
%99'r6 (or8'1) PELTE 009°¥< (0Lt'8) yTT'lt FSL'TE - =
%1106 (88¢'t) 796'6€ 0SE' Y (s¥6'p) LOG' vt 796'6€ = SLY'L SLFL
%6806 (68€°€67) [18'L26'T 00T'122°¢ 19€°018 0SHLILT 118'LT6'T LLEOST £90°661 0FS'6FE
%L 08 (rige) G8F'1E 000°6€ (r1t) €06'1€ 68t°1€ (19) 1€1°T 0L0T
%I1£'T6 (096°TTT) 0r0'LLYT 000°006'T FET'SOL S18'806'L OF0°LLY'T 608'0L £90'081 ¥L8°0SE
%STE1 (1) 9z 00T ) 0€ 9T - £ *
%80°T11 8TTY 8TT'6E 000°SE FSEEL pL8'ST 8TT'6E 6£6'8 - 6£6'8
%99'0L (£98'v<) LEI'TEL 000°L81 SETOY T06°16 LEL'TEL LOY'TL SLL6 181°Z8
%C8 6L (e01°z1) 168°LY 00009 (peo'tL) §T6'8S 168°Lt (L19'1) £60°L 9LY'S
%GETL (LS$'1€0%6) €F0'9L9'ET 005°L0L'ZE (200°656'2) SF0'S€9'9T €F0'9LY'ET 788601 8H0'tHE'T 0£6°ESH'T
%6L'LS (910'01) 78614 00028 0166 vL0'C9 ¥86'LL 161 868°L 880°S
%EE 9L (¢s1'or) LySSYl 000°561 818 6208yl LY8'SFL € 26961 56901
%66'6L (912°L8) ¥8L'8TT 000'98¢ (1pe'st) STE'LYT ¥8L'8TT (o1£) €5T0T TH6'SI
%CTETL (1o1°6LL’T) 668°09T°L 000°0F0°01 (009'L88) 66Y'SKT'8 668'09T"L §56'9Z €56°L69 $06'vTL
%8S 1L (Lzo'6Et'Y) SLY'LTE 1T 008'99L'S 1 (cLe'6ze’l) LEV'LEO'T] CLYLTELL 181°¢¢ $STOLL'L SEF'E0T'l
%SL'EL (b+6'669°1) 9S0'8E9'Y S 000°8££9 (91t'c€9) $ TLYLLT'S $ 950'8£9°F $ B £98'€S 666°0Sk $  TosSY S
P5pnq (S1qEI0ARIU)) [eny Wwepng uAINA ABIR J0uLg [eney UAINJ EERFEEDIE | [enRY
Jo o, JqEI0AE] JIEP 0} JEIX papudwy JEP 01 JBIX IEP 01 JBIX IJEP 0] JED L TP 01 YIUOIA 1EP 01 YIUOJA JEP 0} YIUOA

uosaedwor) AEP 03 JLIZ 0) WIpng

U0SIIEdWOo)) JEI L 0} JEIA

uosaEdwWo)) YIuoy 03 YIuoy

asuadxo :oﬁ:n_ﬁm—w
Lo

SISUIAXD UOLIEIIUIT [BIO],

sosuadxo somod aseyaangd
SIORIILOY [EIDIR|Ig
SeD [Jupue]

WEL] [BOD) I2ANY J12¢
eld [eop [jeqdum)
auIqan |, UONSNQUIOD
auIqIn L pulm TL-N
SI00D) ASUOLS
adpuig Juisue]

OSIN

s1s00 Aoede)

sasuadxa somod aseyaand uoN
asuadxd _hc_ﬂ_nhﬁﬁumv

SINUIADL [BIO],

sanudads Sunesadouou [e10],

)

198SE JO [BS U0 SS0[URD
aLUEDUI 152101U]
SUDLUASINGUIDY
JWOOUL [BIUDL D]0d
AWOIUL [EIUDY

SINUIAAL Suneaddouoyn

sanudAda sunesado Jayio jEI0],

SNOIUE|[2ISIN

auoduL OSIN

5102p peq JO AI0A000Y

de1os jo a[eg

Juiqqol pue os1pueyIdN

SIUNODSIP PALIDJI0,
sanuaadl Sugeasado 12YIO

$2]ES - SonudAdL Sunesado [e10],

SIB1| pIeA
Sunydy wong
Aoyine a1ang
[ewsnpup
[E1219LW0D
[ERuapIsay

SI[ES - SINUIAd Sunexado

(QALIANVNA) TVALOV ANV 1490049 - SISNIIXT ANV SANNIATY 40 ITNATHOS

9102 "1€ HOYVIN dAANT dOTYdd dHL 404

ANNd OILDATH

(ueSyany A3 9sa9ara I Jo 11D ayl jo up) yusuodwo) v)

VYIAMOd ANV LHOIT ALID ASYEAVAEL



55

$ES'ES8 $ +€6°L00'T s 00+'+ST1'1 S M (088°L97'T b3 CIS'SLTY S PE6°LOO'T §

78€'91T $  (zr1oL) S orToF1 $ uomsod j1ou W BUEYD

%61 LL I8L'FF0'01 69T'981'ST 050" 1£T°5€ €OL'COL 995 T8H'FL 69T'981'ST e8I 865°L99'T 7E6'$89'T sosuodxa |ejo,

%8TSL s SST819'L 000°0S1°C £90°86 $8¢°0TS’1 SEF'BI9 968°01 TE6'891 8z86L1 uonerddidag

%98'CL LSTOLY SPLPTE'L 000°108°L (ver's9) LL1'06E'T rLyEe'l = 000's21 000°6T1 25 41D

%S 1YL S6T91 SOL'OF 000'€9 $58°C 0S8'cy S0L'ot vy SLOY 660'G JouRINSU]
sasuadxo YO

%S8LY £E6'68T L9119 008°106 STE'l 6£5°019 L9S119 SLY'C TIY'e9 688799 I5UAAXD UONEASIUTWPE [EIIUIS

%1S°0L $SE00T SYO6LY 00F'6L9 S95'9L 08t'Zov SPO'6LY oty 09€°SY res'6r INAIIS ANIqNJ

%0€°69 £01'091 LBE'19E 008128 (sLren) SLS'PLE L6E'19€ (90L'c 1ze'or 916°LE SULUNOIIE JIWOISHD)

%P r8 T66'SS $0€°€0E 00€°65¢ SLE'ES TEG'6YT $0£°€0E 118°T1 SIL'1Z STSYE UOISSIWISUTL ],

Yl LL 859°€Cl’l §  T6Y'Ess'T S DEI'9LE'E $ AR $  LOSWY'T $  I6V'ES8T S M 679°sE $  €TTLEL §  TS8TUT $ uonnqLIsIQg

ospng (dqeIoAERU)) 1Y wapng U Loy QEER | [En1dY U ELSFETIEE | |enRy
Joes, dquIcAE] LP 0) ALK papudwy EP 03 JBIX JEP 0] JEIA TP 01 JBIX NEP 0} YIUOW JJEP 01 YIUOTN] e 0} PUO]
uosuaedwo)) REp 03 JBIA 0} 193png uosaedwo)) J8d X 01 JBIL uosIedo)) YIuoA 03 YIuo

910Z ‘1€ HOUVIN dAANE AOIddd JHL 04
(ALIANVNN) TVALOV ANV LIDANE - SASNAIXT ANV SANNIATY 40 ATNATHOS
ANNA D18.LOATA

(ueSiyarpy A3 9s1aka ] Jo AN oy jo ) Juduodwo) v)

YIMOd ANV LHDIT ALID HSHIAVIL



56

$9070 S S50°0 g F8 08 EET'LI S £876£0°506"1 S 685'8L9°89T 90T'S65TE 0],
21qza1|dde jou aqeonddetou  p0'000°CES 00°000°¢S |quaydde jou a|qualjdde 1ou (pyrmw) $1507 A9wdeD) Vddn
0L0'0 0L0'0 S+'889°'ST 98'116C SER'60Y 8681 aulqm [, putm TL-W
+L0 9110 09'FT1EFE'T FITLTLTET r09°08+'0T €€9°L00'T S0 Au0g
900 £90°0 SIGLILTY 0L’ 10961 £96'6LLD 986°18L ST} [1ypueT]
oo 9210 LL9SS'OFS'T €6 1TL'SST 10L°298'+T 900°89C°C UpqQUN |, BONSNQUIOT
0L0'0 69070 00'SLE"LOY'E 00'+$0°88¢ T6+'290'08 LSS’y 10ATY 2112
650°0 900 00°S88819°€ 00°$HTLIC 1686919 0Z6°€98°9 £ l1agdursy
L100 6100 TLEES' LY SHT9C'8ET 000°91¥°0F 000°T65°TI JARNUOT) (L1

00Z'0 SLO'O 09°LSS'TLO| TSEIY'BEY €Q1'ESES 1€F'¥88'S [eiogng

ajquandde Jou aiquandde 1ou (947 148°CLT) ($8°L9E°C9) a|quorjdde jou squordde lou UOISSTWISURL ],

ajquardde jou a|quatdde jou 91'€T1'91 1876691 o|quandde 10u sjquondde 10u JULIDA|O AN

8T1°0 €800 0S'€08'811°1 1€°6%0°008 <08°69L’S 1€4'$88°S VddW - OSIN

(££0°0) O/AICH 0LTLOFLL ¥$'9¢ (00£°914°€) - TME - OSIN
o2y OSIn
6¥0°0 $ i0/ATaH LEVB0'868'T $ - §  000°tr6'ss . 23pug Suisur]
31p 01 JEIA uow 18062 1502 J3ep 01 v HMM Juow HAAMOd QASVHOUNL

Y 20) YA 243 10} YA NTP 0) X Appuew HAMM
aad 350D aad 350
SIENIIDT A[YIUOW JO ISNEIDQ JUIWIITIS JLWODUL 01 IDILE J0U OP SINUIAIY 0N
GIS'996'€T s FES'LEY'T 8 ITTER0'TTT 600'88E°9T TG (B0,
£800°0 €681°0 9L6T'0 0z00'0 L9610 L861°0 6¥9°TTT LOT' 1Y FTL9ZTIT 006°90T SIS 19908 put pIo A
(vs10°0) $S60°0 0080°0 8700°0 09L0°0 808070 WLTEL $06°FTL 08¥'LSST16 0L5°0L6'S safeg [eLsnpu]
(zTioo) [0Z1°0 6L0T°0 80000 ¥801°0 6010 09FovL1L 919°65¢€"1 1£9°09L°801 IrL'81v'Tl SIES [ElDIIUIWO]
(z010°0) $ 0010 8601°0 £000°0 S £601°0 S 8601°0 $ 695'SL9'Y S €0T'9T5 $ 98£865' LY 86L'16L'Y SIES [ELUDIPISTY
DUTLITA RTp 01 Rup DUBLITA Jluow yuow INUIADL NUIAI ep 01 Je0d HAAM yuow SATVS
NP 0) ABIK AEA S0 0) JBIX Aqauow Jrad ao1ag L) TP 03 JEI Y Aqruo HAMM
SIES/ANUIADY S| EGANUIAIY

9107 ‘1€ HOYVIA dAANT dOTYdd FHL J04d
NOILLVINJOANI AdVININWITddNS

ANNA DTILDATH

(ueB1Yd1A ‘431D 9sa0AkA ] JO A1D) Y3 Jo Nup) Juduodwo)) y)

YIMOd ANV LHOIT ALID SYIAVYL



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
(A Component Unit of the City of Traverse City, Michigan)
ELECTRIC FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCII 31, 2016

Cash flows from operating activitics
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments of City fee

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Cash payments from funds
Customer deposits paid
Rental income received
Reimbursements received
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from assets held for sale
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Sale of investments
Interest and dividends
Net cash used by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$ 26,367,801
(3,254,894)
(19,629,546)
(1,488,259)

1,995,103

19,441
12,366
72,715
333,704

438,226

980,900
(6,575,794)

(5,594,894)

(2,766,384)
183,023

(2,583,361)

(5,744,926)

9,098,003

3 3,353,077

57



69981 uonisod Jou |B10], 98¢°1 AO[JINO PALIdJOJ
£89799C poloLIsalLln
TSLGLS'] sjosse [ende ur poISIAU] 799°L88'T SIISSE [EIO
6LL'TY sanIIqel (B0, T8L'6LS'L §)9SSE JUILIND-UOU [EIO ],
€9L°9¢ Anpiqer) vorsuad 1oN LEOHLS] 1ou “paretoaidap Sutoq s19sse [eyde)
200°1 So0usqe paresuadwo) Ak ssa1Soud u1 uonONISUOD
SINNIEN W2} BU0T] $J9SSE JUILINI-UON]
900°S1 SINI[IGE]] JULIND [BIO], 088'L0E $JISSE JU211ND [BI0 ],
- jounuaAod Arewnd o) angg ce sosuodxo predaig
0LT VI INUIASI poUIBIU[) 966°¢ ATOJuAU]
s SONI|IqeI] JOYI0 pue Sasuadxs paniooy [LE9 O[EAIDOI SUNOIDY
¥1T o1qeded siunoooy 816°¢6C $ sjuareAInb yses pue yse)
sonIjIqel] JUdLIND) $I9SSE JULIND)
NOILISOd LAN ANV SHILI'TIGVIT SLISSY
910T "1 HOUVIN
NOILLISOd LN 40 INHFIWILVLS
ANNA JIdId

(ueBiyary ‘A 9sa9ara ] Jo A a3 jo un) jusuodwo) v)

dTAMOd ANV LHDIT ALID ISYHAVYL

58



(09+°L9) S 69°9+8°'1  § 6T6°CIG'T S
- F9L7€08°1 ¥9L°€98°1
%8t e~ (09¥°L9) (s6T°L1) §91°08
%TH IS (0LLFD) 0£9°¢1 00%°0€
(0z8'zs) (826°2) €9L°61
%E0°6L 8670 LEIZIT SEH°89T
%8L 9L [€1°ze 692901 00t'8€1
%000 SEF I - SVl
%LSZ81 (91£7€) 91Z'8 005y
2%00°0 00Z°1 - 00T°1
%0070 001°T C 001°C
%GS5 'S (866) 86<°L 00¥°9
%9T 0L TTI'T1 8LT9T 00%°LE
%YT 0 [L6°11 6T 000°C1
%L8°6T 1 (zLT9) TLTLE 000°12
%1€°811 (5£9°9) §L99¢ 000°1€
%81°79 (686°801) 11Z'6L1 007°88T
0/AIQ# 6z 621 -
%¥ 1Y (811°601) 3 T80°6L1 $  00T'88¢C $
ja5png jo (s1qea0AEIUN)) BNy 125png
EFIlERIED | 2[QBI0ARY 3EP 03 ABIX papuamy

(@)
Lo

B34 Jo pud ‘uonisod jaN
Jeak jo Suluurdeq ‘uonisod 19N
uonisod 32U u1 a5uByD)

SIUDWIASINQUUIIDY
sanuaAdl Sunetadouoy

(sso]) swodut sunesadQ
sosuadxa Sunesado [Blo],

uoneaidag

291 K10

[BIUSY I[PIYDI A

QouBINSU]

juawdo[aAap [BUOISSRJO1]

|ENJOBIIUOD PUB [BUOISSOL

oouruLUIBW pue suoleredO TIIM

sa1ddng

S1jouaq ABuLl

saSem pue saLIB[ES
sasuadxa SunesdQ

sanuaAad sunetado |g10],
Suiqqol pue SulsipueyaIay

SIDIAIRS 10J SATIRYD)
sanudAdl sunetadQ

9107 ‘1€ HOYVIN dIANT dOTddd THL 04

NOILISOd LAN NI SHONVHO

ANV SASNAJIXT ‘STAANTATYT 40 INFNILVILS

ANNA JHIIA

(weSIYRIAl ‘A1) 9SI9ABI ], JO A31D) 213 Jo j1up) Juduodwo)) V)

HIMOd ANV LHOIT ALID dSHIAVIL



